
WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 

MONDAY, MAY 11, 2020 - 7:00 PM 

WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL EXECUTIVE CONFERENCE ROOM 

ELECTRONIC VIA ZOOM 

I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. INVOCATION.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

IV. WELCOME.

V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

VI. PROCLAMATIONS:

1. National EMS Week.

2. National Public Works Week.

3. National Police Week.

4. Robert Blount.

VII. PRESENTATIONS:

1. Worthington Road Corridor Study.

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT: The Public Comment period of thirty minutes provides an opportunity for
residents to comment on any item included in the agenda or to address the Town Council on
any other matter related to the Town of Winterville. For an item included in the Public Hearing
section of the agenda, residents should address the Council at the time the Mayor invites public
comment on the item. No public comment may be made to the Council during the meeting,
except during the Public Comment period or as part of a Public Hearing. Individual speakers are
limited to a maximum of three minutes, and no more than three speakers may address the
Council on a single matter. The Town Council may elect to take no action on the matter
addressed by a speaker, may schedule the matter for further consideration at a future Council
meeting, or may refer the matter to Town staff for disposition. Copies of the Town Public
Comment Policy are available in the rear of the Assembly Room.

IX. CONSENT AGENDA: The following items are considered routine in nature and will not be
discussed by the Town Council unless a Councilman or citizen requests that an item be
removed from the Consent Agenda for further discussion. The Mayor may allow citizens to
address an item or ask questions.

1. Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes:
 April 13, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes; and
 April 27, 2020 Budget Progress Meeting Minutes.

2. Ange Plaza Lot 21 Annexation – Reschedule Public Hearing.

3. Evergreen Construction Rezoning Request – Reschedule Public Hearing.

4. FEMA Assistance Resolution Designation of Applicants Agent (COVID-19).



X. OLD BUSINESS:

1. Nobel Canal Grant Application Update.

XI. NEW BUSINESS:

1. Highway 11 Force Main Bore Contract.

2. 2018 Sidewalks Improvements Project Change Order #2.

3. Urgent Repair List.

4. Schedule Town Manager’s Performance Review

XII. OTHER AGENDA ITEMS:

1. Discussion on COVID-19 Re-opening (Councilman Smith).

2. Discussion on Restriction of Duplexes within Certain Areas of Town (Councilman Moore).

XIII. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS:

XIV. REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS:

 Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement (TLP)
 Tar Road Widening Project – Electric Engineering/Relocation (RS)
 New Electric Territory Engineering/Installation (RS)
 Fork Swamp Greenway Project (EJ)
 Multi-Purpose Building Site Plan (EJ)
 Winterville Market/Town Common Plan (BW)
 Chapman Street Culvert - Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study (TW)
 2018 Sewer Rehab (TW)
 Church Street Pump Station Rehabilitation (TW)
 Cemetery (BW)

XV. ANNOUNCEMENTS:

XVI. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN
MANAGER.

XVII. ADJOURN.

SPECIAL NOTICE: Anyone who needs an interpreter or special accommodations to participate in the 
meeting should notify the Town Clerk, Don Harvey at (252) 215-2344 at least forty-eight (48) hours 
prior to the meeting. (Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 1991.) 

2



Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

Item Section: Proclamations 

Meeting Date: May 11, 2020 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: National EMS Week. 

Action Requested: Approval of Proclamation. 

Attachment: National EMS Week Proclamation. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 4/29/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 5/4/2020 ☒ TM: 5/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 5/7/2020

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the attached National EMS Week Proclamation. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approval of Proclamation. 

3



 

PROCLAMATION 
National Emergency Medical Services Week 

 

WHEREAS, emergency medical services is a vital public service; and, 

WHEREAS, the members of emergency medical services teams are ready to provide 
lifesaving care to those in need 24 hours a day, seven days a week; and, 

WHEREAS, access to quality emergency care dramatically improves the survival and 
recovery rate of those who experience sudden illness or injury; and, 

WHEREAS, emergency medical services has grown to fill a gap by providing important, 
out of hospital care, including preventative medicine, follow-up care, and access to 
telemedicine; and, 

WHEREAS, the emergency medical services system consists of first responders, 
emergency medical technicians, paramedics, emergency medical dispatchers, firefighters, 
police officers, educators, administrators, pre-hospital nurses, emergency nurses, emergency 
physicians, trained members of the public, and other out of hospital medical care providers; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the members of emergency medical services teams, whether career or 
volunteer, engage in thousands of hours of specialized training and continuing education to 
enhance their lifesaving skills; and, 

WHEREAS, it is appropriate to recognize the value and the accomplishments of 
emergency medical services providers by designating Emergency Medical Services Week; 
and, 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor of the Town of Winterville hereby in 
recognition of this event do hereby proclaim the week of May 17-23, 2020 as Emergency 
Medical Services Week; and, 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do set my hand, and cause the seal of Winterville to be 
affixed this 11th day of May, 2020. 

 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

4



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Proclamations 

 

Meeting Date: May 11, 2020 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: National Public Works Week. 

Action Requested: Approval of Proclamation. 

Attachment: National Public Works Week Proclamation. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 4/29/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 5/4/2020 ☒ TM: 5/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 5/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the attached National Public Works Week Proclamation. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approval of Proclamation. 

 

5



 

PROCLAMATION 
National Public Works Week 

 

WHEREAS, public works professionals focus on infrastructure, facilities and services 
that are of vital importance to sustainable and resilient communities and to the public health, 
high quality of life and well-being of the people of Winterville; and, 

WHEREAS, these infrastructure, facilities and services could not be provided without 
the dedicated efforts of public works professionals, who are engineers, managers and 
employees at all levels of government and the private sector, who are responsible for 
rebuilding, improving and protecting our nation’s transportation, water supply, water treatment 
and solid waste systems, public buildings, and other structures and facilities essential for our 
citizens; and, 

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest for the citizens, civic leaders and children in 
Winterville to gain knowledge of and to maintain a progressive interest and understanding of 
the importance of public works and public works programs in their respective communities; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the year 2020 marks the 60th annual National Public Works Week 
sponsored by the American Public Works Association/Canadian Public Works Association be it 
now, 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor of the Town of Winterville do hereby 
designate the week of May 17–23, 2020 as National Public Works Week; I urge all citizens to 
join with representatives of the American Public Works Association and government agencies 
in activities, events and ceremonies designed to pay tribute to our public works professionals, 
engineers, managers and employees and to recognize the substantial contributions they make 
to protecting our national health, safety, and quality of life; and 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do set my hand, and cause the seal of Winterville to be 
affixed this 11th day of May, 2020. 

 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

6



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Proclamations 

 

Meeting Date: May 11, 2020 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: National Police Week. 

Action Requested: Approval of Proclamation. 

Attachment: National Police Week Proclamation. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 4/29/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 5/4/2020 ☒ TM: 5/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 5/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the attached National Police Week Proclamation. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approval of Proclamation. 

 

7



 

PROCLAMATION 
National Police Week 

 

WHEREAS, law enforcement is a vital public service; and, 

WHEREAS, the members of law enforcement are ready to provide services 24 hours a 
day, seven days a week; and, 

WHEREAS, in 1962, President John F. Kennedy signed a proclamation which designated 
May 15 as Peace Officers Memorial Day and the week in which that date falls as Police Week. 
Currently, tens of thousands of law enforcement officers from around the world participate in a 
number of planned events which honor those that have paid the ultimate sacrifice. 

WHEREAS, the Memorial Service began in 1982 as a gathering in Senate Park of 
approximately 120 survivors and supporters of law enforcement. Decades later, the event, 
more commonly known as National Police Week, has grown to a series of events which 
attracts thousands of survivors and law enforcement officers. 

WHEREAS, The National Peace Officers Memorial Service, which is sponsored by the 
Grand Lodge of the Fraternal Order of Police, is one in a series of events which includes the 
Candlelight Vigil, which is sponsored by the National Law Enforcement Officers Memorial Fund 
by the Concerns of Police Survivors. 

WHEREAS, National Police Week draws in between 25,000 to 40,000 attendees. The 
attendees come from departments throughout the United States as well as from agencies 
throughout the world. This provides a unique opportunity to meet others who work in law 
enforcement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor of the Town of Winterville hereby in 
recognition of this event do hereby proclaim the week of May 10-16, 2020 as National Police 
Week; and, 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do set my hand, and cause the seal of Winterville to be 
affixed this 11th day of May, 2020. 

 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

8



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Proclamations 

 

Meeting Date: May 11, 2020 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Robort Blount. 

Action Requested: Approval of Proclamation. 

Attachment: Proclamation Honoring Robert Blount 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 5/8/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 5/8/2020 ☒ TM: 5/8/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 5/8/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of Proclamation Honoring Robert Blount. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approval of Proclamation. 

 

9



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Presentations 

 

Meeting Date: May 11, 2020 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Worthington Road Corridor Study. 

Action Requested: Approve Plan. 

Attachment: Draft Plan. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 4/24/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 5/4/2020 ☒ TM: 5/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 5/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The purpose of this corridor study is to develop a corridor plan for Worthington Road, between Mill Street 
and Corey Road that establishes long term capacity under a balanced land use plan. The corridor study 
evaluates current and future planned conditions, identify deficiencies and make recommendations to 
enhance connectivity and access for all modes of transportation and travel along the corridor, as well as 
create a vision for the corridor. Land and development patterns as well as strategies for a balanced 
transportation system have also been considered. Worthington Road will function as a gateway into the 
Town of Winterville and will connect future development with the downtown area, as well as providing 
connectivity for bicyclists and pedestrians. Maintaining a quality aesthetic context will also be important along 
the corridor. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Approve Plan. 

 

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: May 11, 2020 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Council Meeting Minutes. 

Action Requested: Approval of Minutes. 

Attachment: Draft Minutes of the Council meetings listed below. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 4/29/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 5/4/2020 ☒ TM: 5/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 5/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes: 

 April 13, 2020 Regular Council Meeting; and, 

 April 27, 2020 Budget Progress Meeting. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approval of Minutes. 

 

40



 

Page 1 of 81 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
MONDAY, APRIL 13, 2020 - 7:00 PM 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
ELECTRONIC VIA ZOOM 

 
The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 7:00 PM electronically via 
ZOOM with Mayor Douglas A. Jackson presiding. The following were present the entire length of the 
meeting: 

 
Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 

Veronica W. Roberson Mayor Pro Tem 
Richard (Ricky) E. Hines, Councilman 

Tony P. Moore, Councilman 
Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Mark C. Smith, Councilman 

Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 
Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 

David Moore, Fire Chief 
Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 

Robert Sutton, Electric Director 
Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 
Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Willie Gay, Code Enforcement Officer 
Amy P. Barrow, Executive Staff Assistant/Human Resource Assistant 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jackson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Mayor Jackson gave the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Jackson led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Jackson welcomed everyone participating in the meeting via the electronic format 
due to COVID-19. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion to approve the agenda. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS: 
 
Volunteer Appreciation Month: Town Clerk Harvey read the Proclamation. 

41



 

Page 2 of 81 

 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: There were no public comments submitted for the meeting. 

42



 

Page 3 of 81 

 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
Items included in the Consent Agenda: 
 
1. Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes: 

 March 9, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes. 
2. Evergreen Construction Company: Rezoning Request (Conditional Zoning District) - Schedule 

Public Hearing for May 11, 2020. 
3. Ange Plaza, Lot 21: Annexation Request - Schedule Public Hearing for May 11, 2020. 
4. Budget Amendment. 
 
Motion to approve the consent agenda. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
Cost Participation for Betterment Costs of Eli’s Ridge Subdivision Lift Station & Force Main. 
Travis Welborn, Public Works Director presented the following information: 
 
The Eli’s Ridge Subdivision development will require the construction of a new lift station within the 
subdivision to provide gravity sewer service to the subdivision. The Eli’s Ridge lift station will pump to the 
Towns new regional lift station off Old Tar Rd. Staff has coordinated with the Engineer for the Eli’s Ridge 
development and learned that the station could be upgraded to accommodate future growth east of Fork 
Swamp Canal to County Home Road. By investing in this lift station now, the Town could avoid the need 
for additional lift stations in the future east of the canal. Lift stations are a burden on the Town and its 
staff, both financially and time wise. This investment would also provide access to sewer for all of the 
properties east of the canal, which could spur further development in the Worthington Road corridor. 
Based on the Engineer’s calculations, the Eli’ Ridge development would necessitate a 6’ diameter wet 
well and a 6” diameter force main. The Engineer has recommended that the wet well be upgraded to a 
10’ diameter wet well and the force main be upgraded to an 8” diameter main to accommodate this future 
growth. The Town Council previously approved entering into a Cost Share Agreement with the Developer 
for these betterment costs, with a financing agreement to be approved once bids are received for the 
project. The Engineer has received bids on the project and the cost difference between what the 
developer would need for the Eli’s Ridge Subdivision only and what the Town has requested for future 
growth is $83,426.50. This number is based off estimated quantities, and the actual cost share would be 
based upon actual quantities installed. The Developer has also requested that the Town reimburse for 
additional engineering for $9,500, so total betterment cost to the Town would be approximately 
$92,926.50. Staff recommends that the Town borrow the funds necessary for this cost share from itself 
and pay the money back over a 5-year period. In doing so, staff believes that it can absorb this annual 
estimated cost of approximately $18,600 with its current revenue stream. The Developer has also agreed 
to carry the betterment cost until project completion such that the Town will only make one payment upon 
satisfactory completion of the project. Since bids have been received, the Town Attorney worked with the 
Developer’s Attorney to combine the financing agreement and cost share agreement into one document, 
which is presented herewith for final approval. 
 

43



 

Page 4 of 81 

 

44



 

Page 5 of 81 

 

45



 

Page 6 of 81 

 

46



 

Page 7 of 81 

 

47



 

Page 8 of 81 

 

48



 

Page 9 of 81 

 

49



 

Page 10 of 81 

 

50



 

Page 11 of 81 

 

51



 

Page 12 of 81 

 

52



 

Page 13 of 81 

 

53



 

Page 14 of 81 

 

54



 

Page 15 of 81 

 

55



 

Page 16 of 81 

 

56



 

Page 17 of 81 

 

 

 

57



 

Page 18 of 81 

 

58



 

Page 19 of 81 

 

59



 

Page 20 of 81 

 

60



 

Page 21 of 81 

61



 

Page 22 of 81 

 

62



 

Page 23 of 81 

Town Attorney Lassiter explained and described changes to the agreements. 
 
Motion to approve the Cost Sharing and Reimbursement Agreement for Betterment Costs of Eli’s 
Ridge Subdivision Lift Station and Force Main. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Utility Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement for Eli’s Ridge Subdivision Lift Station & Force Main. 
Travis Welborn, Public Works Director presented the following information: 
 
The Developer of Eli’s Ridge Subdivision (Bill Clark Homes of Greenville, LLC) will be constructing a new 
lift station and force main to facilitate sanitary sewer service to the proposed subdivision. The lift station 
and force main are adequately sized to accommodate future growth in the immediate vicinity of the 
proposed lift station. The Developer has requested that future development which benefits from the 
construction of the Eli’s Ridge Lift Station and Force Main be responsible for reimbursement for a 
proportionate share of the original construction cost borne by the developer. Due to the cost associated 
with constructing the lift station and force main, and the benefit provided to the Town by the construction 
of this “regional” lift station, Town staff recommends entering into an Agreement with the Developer such 
that a portion of his initial cost can be recouped from future development(s) which contribute sanitary 
sewer to the new lift station. All betterment costs paid for by the Town would be excluded from this 
Agreement, and the Developer would only be entitled to reimbursement for a proportionate share of his 
actual cost. The Agreement would expire after ten (10) years, and at such time, no further 
reimbursements would occur. 

63



 

Page 24 of 81 

 

64



 

Page 25 of 81 

 

65



 

Page 26 of 81 

 
 

66



 

Page 27 of 81 

 

67



 

Page 28 of 81 

 

68



 

Page 29 of 81 

 

69



 

Page 30 of 81 

 

70



 

Page 31 of 81 

 

71



 

Page 32 of 81 

 

72



 

Page 33 of 81 

 

73



 

Page 34 of 81 

 
 

 
 
Town Attorney Lassiter explained and described changes to the agreements. 
 
Motion to approve the Reimbursement Agreement for Eli’s Ridge Subdivision Lift Station and 
Force Main. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 

74



 

Page 35 of 81 

 
Chapman Street Culvert Replacement Project Proposed Contract Amendment. 
Travis Welborn, Public Works Director presented the following information: 
 
The Town received a grant in 2017 for the replacement of the Chapman Street Culvert due in part to the 
existing culvert being undersized and contributing to flooding issues upstream. The original grant and 
contract expiration date was June 1, 2020. Construction on the project began in February 2020. The 
contractor has completed approximately 60% of the work as of April 1, 2020. The contractor anticipates 
being 100% complete with the work on May 25. To give Town staff ample time to complete the project 
closeout documentation including the reimbursement request, staff requested an extension from the 
funding agency. The funding agency is willing to grant a 12-month extension with Amendment 1 to the 
contract. 
 

 
Motion to approve the Chapman Street Culvert Replacement Project Contract Amendment. The 
motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 

75



 

Page 36 of 81 

 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
2020 Street Improvements Project Contract Award. 
Travis Welborn, Public Works Director presented the following information: 
 
Bids for the annual Powell Bill street resurfacing project were received on Thursday March 26, 2020. This 
project includes milling and resurfacing portions of several streets, including Roxie Court, Milton Drive, 
and Cedar Ridge Drive; and replacing a storm drainage pipe under Corey Street. Four (4) bids were 
received for the project, with Tripp Bro’s Inc. being the lowest responsible bidder with a total bid of 
$133,933.90. Due to limited funding, the project was bid with a base bid, which consisted of Roxie Court, 
Milton Drive, and Corey Street: and an alternate bid item for Cedar Ridge Drive. Fortunately, the total 
including the base bid and the alternate is still within the available funds for the project. Town staff 
recommends that the contract be awarded to Tripp Bro’s Inc. for $133,933.90, including the base bid and 
alternate #1. Tripp Bro’s bid was competitive enough that staff anticipates being able to potentially add 
work at Preston Trails Drive that had to be removed from last year’s project due to budget constraints. 
Upon completion of the original scope of work, staff will evaluate remaining available funds and report to 
council on the possibility of completing that work as well. 
 

76



 

Page 37 of 81 

 

77



 

Page 38 of 81 

 
 

78



 

Page 39 of 81 

 
 
Motion to award the contract for the 2020 Street Improvements Project to Tripp Bro’s Inc. for 
$133,933.90. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 

79



 

Page 40 of 81 

 
Public Works Capital Improvement Plan Update. 
Travis Welborn, Public Works Director presented the following information: 
 
The Town’s Capital Improvement Plan has been revised and updated by the Public Works Director. This 
is a requirement to receive points towards low interest loans for capital improvement projects such as the 
proposed water improvements project and sanitary sewer rehab projects. The plan also has to be adopted 
by Council to be accepted by the reviewing agency. Approving this plan does not require the Town to 
complete the projects but does help staff and council budget for future improvements and projects. 
 

 

80



 

Page 41 of 81 

 

81



 

Page 42 of 81 

 
 

82



 

Page 43 of 81 

 

83



 

Page 44 of 81 

 

84



 

Page 45 of 81 

 

85



 

Page 46 of 81 

 

86



 

Page 47 of 81 

 

87



 

Page 48 of 81 

 

88



 

Page 49 of 81 

 

89



 

Page 50 of 81 

 

90



 

Page 51 of 81 

 

91



 

Page 52 of 81 

 

92



 

Page 53 of 81 

 

93



 

Page 54 of 81 

 

94



 

Page 55 of 81 

 

95



 

Page 56 of 81 

 
 

96



 

Page 57 of 81 

 

97



 

Page 58 of 81 

 

98



 

Page 59 of 81 

 

99



 

Page 60 of 81 

 

100



 

Page 61 of 81 

 

101



 

Page 62 of 81 

 

102



 

Page 63 of 81 

 

103



 

Page 64 of 81 

 

104



 

Page 65 of 81 

 
 

105



 

Page 66 of 81 

 

106



 

Page 67 of 81 

 

107



 

Page 68 of 81 

 

108



 

Page 69 of 81 

 

109



 

Page 70 of 81 

 

110



 

Page 71 of 81 

 

111



 

Page 72 of 81 

 

112



 

Page 73 of 81 

Motion to approve the Public Works Capital Improvement Plan Update. The motion carried 
unanimously, 5-0. 
 
2020 Water System Improvements: SRF Loan Application Authorizing Resolution. 
Travis Welborn, Public Works Director presented the following information: 
 
The NC Department of Environmental Quality (NCDEQ) Division of Water Infrastructure (DWI) will be 
accepting applications for water and sewer improvement projects for the Spring 2020 round. Town staff 
proposes to submit a request for funding for the 2020 Water System Improvements Project, which will 
increase water quality and decrease water age in the southwestern portions of the Town’s water system, 
including South Ridge, Magnolia Ridge, Summer Winds, and Copper Creek Subdivisions. The application 
will request funding for $531,800 for areas targeted in the recently developed and adopted Water System 
Asset Management Plan/Capital Improvements Plan. The project will include constructing an 8” water 
main loop under Highway 11 at Reedy Branch Road, as well as an 8” water main loop along Mill Street 
from Emily Drive to Park Road and along Park Road to Church Street. 
 
Applications are due April 30, 2020 with Notice of Funding anticipated to occur in late summer 2020. If 
approved for funding, Council will have the opportunity to decide whether to accept the loan offer. 
 

 

113



 

Page 74 of 81 

114



 

Page 75 of 81 

 
Motion to approve the 2020 Water System Improvements SRF Loan Application Authorizing 
Resolution. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Appointment of Board of Adjustment Member. 
Planning Director Jones presented the following information: 
 
Helen Rollins resigned from the Board of Adjustment as a regular City Limits Member. Currently, there 
are three (3) eligible applications on file requesting appointment to the Board of Adjustment. The 
applicants are as follows (listed in order of receipt): 

• Garrett Killian; and 
• Joseph Pierce; and 
• Brandy Daniels. 

 
The appointed Board Member’s term will end 06/30/2023. 
 
Motion to nominate Joseph Pierce to the Board of Adjustment. The motion carried unanimously, 
5-0. 
 
ADA Self-Assessment and Transition Plan. 
Travis Welborn, Public Works Director presented the following information: 
 
The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990 is a civil rights statute that prohibits discrimination 
against people who have disabilities. Title II of the Act specifically addresses the subject of making public 
services and public transportation accessible to those with disabilities. As a necessary step to a program 
access plan to provide accessibility under the ADA, state and local government, public entities or 
agencies are required to perform self-evaluations of their current facilities, relative the accessibility 
requirements of the ADA. The agencies are then required to develop a Program Access Plan, which can 
be called a Transition Plan, to address any deficiencies. The Plan is intended to achieve the following: 

1. Identify physical obstacles that limit the accessibility of facilities to individuals with disabilities 
2. Describe the methods to be used to make the facilities accessible 
3. Provide a schedule for making the access modifications 
4. Identify the public officials responsible for implementation of the Transition Plan 

Town staff proposes to contract with the Town’s consulting Engineer, The Wooten Company, to perform 
the self-assessment and create the Town’s Transition Plan. Funds for this project were approved in the 
current fiscal year budget. 

115



 

Page 76 of 81 

 

116



 

Page 77 of 81 

 

117



 

Page 78 of 81 

 

118



 

Page 79 of 81 

 
Motion to contract with The Wooten Company at a ceiling fee of $50,000 for the ADA Self-
Assessment and Transition Plan. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 

119



 

Page 80 of 81 

OTHER AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
Reduce electric rates temporarily due to Coronavirus. (Councilman Moore). 
Councilman Moore introduced the idea of a temporary electric rate reduction. 
 
Council and Staff discussed a variety of topics relating to COVID-19 impact on utility payments, 
delinquency rate, fees, interest, and cut-offs. The impact on the Town’s budget discussed with information 
provided on the estimated amount of lost revenue. All were encouraged to contact Representative G. K. 
Butterfield when they go back in session to help towns like ours. Many customers think they do not have 
to pay. A special newsletter will be sent explaining details and encourage customers to keep paying. After 
discussion, following motion was presented. 
 
Motion to approve a temporary 10% electric rate reduction for the April and May usage periods, 
with an option to extend an additional month to all electric customers. The motion carried 
unanimously, 5-0. 
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS: 
 
Town Manager Evaluation will be on the May meeting agenda to determine a date and time. 
 
REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS: 
 

 Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement (TLP) 
 Tar Road Widening Project – Electric Engineering/Relocation (RS) 
 New Electric Territory Engineering/Installation (RS) 
 Fork Swamp Greenway Project (EJ) 
 Multi-Purpose Building Site Plan (EJ) 
 Winterville Market/Town Common Plan (BW) 
 Chapman Street Culvert - Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study (TW) 
 2018 Sewer Rehab (TW) 
 Church Street Pump Station Rehabilitation (TW) 
 Cemetery (BW) 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: None due cancellation of activities due to COVID-19. 
 
REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR, AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN MANAGER: 
 
Attorney Lassiter: None. 
 
Councilman Moore: None. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Roberson: Thanks to staff, these are difficult times; encourage contacting 
Representative G. K. Butterfield. 
 
Councilman Smith: Thanks to staff. 
 
Councilman Moye: Prayers for all that are helping, please maintain your social distance. 
 
Councilman Hines: Thanks to the Staff during COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
Manager Parker: Thanks to Council for their support during these times, we have a rock star staff and 
many thanks to them. 
 
Mayor Jackson: Thanks to the Town for thoughts and prayers during my illness. 

120



 

Page 81 of 81 

 
ADJOURN: Motion to adjourn meeting. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. Meeting adjourned at 
8:44 pm. 
 
 
 Adopted this the 11th day of May, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

121



 

Page 1 of 6 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
APRIL 27, 2020 – 5:30 PM 

BUDGET PROGRESS MEETING MINUTES 
ELECTRONIC VIA ZOOM 

 
The Winterville Town Council met in a Budget Progress Meeting on the above date at 5:30 PM 
electronically via ZOOM with Mayor Douglas A. Jackson presiding. The following were present the 
entire length of the meeting: 

 
Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 

Veronica W. Roberson Mayor Pro Tem 
Richard (Ricky) E. Hines, Councilman 

Tony P. Moore, Councilman 
Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Mark C. Smith, Councilman 

Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 
Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 

Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 
David Moore, Fire Chief 

Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 
Robert Sutton, Electric Director 

Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 
Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 

Bryan Jones, Planning Director 
Willie Gay, Code Enforcement Officer 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jackson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Councilman Moye gave the Invocation. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Jackson welcomed everyone. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson to approve the 
agenda. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 
 
Update on Budget-to-Date for FY 2019-2020 
 
Town Manager Parker opened the items for discussion and turned it over to Finance Director Bowers. 
He updated Council on the 2019-2020 budget-to-date. The COVID-19 situation has caused us to be 
creative. The revenues impacted most are state shared revenues. Sales tax revenues are on a 3-month 

122



 

Page 2 of 6 

lag and possibly show a 29% reduction. On the utilities side, we had a mild winter and spring and 
accounts receivable are down due to reduction and nonpayment. 
 
Town Manager Parker noted the temporary reduction on electric rates. Finance Director Bowers noted 
this would also reduce revenues. 
 
Town Manager Parker in January we were tracking, and then COVID-19 influenced how we are 
running. Finance Director Bowers noted electric losses are $233,000 over 2 months, depending on 
usage. 
 
Councilman Moye asked what the reduction affected. Town Manager Parker said May and June bills, 
and if Council opts, that would be July bills in the new budget year. Finance Director Bowers noted 
there is not a very good way to show COVID-19 savings on the utility bill. We will do some legwork to 
show savings on bill. Town Manager Parker added we will work on a method to show and will inform 
Council. 
 
  

123



 

Page 3 of 6 

Budget Progress Update for FY 2020-2021 
 

 

124



 

Page 4 of 6 

 

125



 

Page 5 of 6 

 
Town Manager Parker stated the budget season is staying on schedule and we will work on normal 
meetings or hybrid type meetings. 
 
Town Manager Parker said tax valuation, revaluation completed. Finance Director Bowers added 
property tax budget and collection rate dropped due to COVID-19. Finance Director Bowers said sales 
and use tax would show a reduction for the coming year. Town Manager Parker said the rate versus 
loss would determine impact. 
 
Councilman Moye asked if the federal government would help in any way. Finance Director Bowers 
said in a very limited way, some recoup from FEMA. Town Manager Parker added not having high 
expectations for getting any. 
 
Town Manager Parker explained Powell Bill, utility franchise, building inspections, interest income, and 
general fund, no debt service change, and Fire Department grant. Town Manager Parker then 
discussed the Enterprise funds: water, sewer. Finance Director Bowers commented on the Sewer CIP 
change for 2019 was $151,493 and for 2020 is to be determined. Public Works Director Welborn noted 
there are new projects underway and forthcoming. Town Manager Parker said electric would have a 
slight increase and stormwater is flat. 
 
Finance Director Bowers said under the new normal, manufacturers in town have contracts. Town 
Manager Parker noted we have provided a great deal of information tonight. 
 
Mayor Jackson said thanks to Finance Director Bowers and staff for hard work. Finance Director 
Bowers noted we want to keep the Town in a good financial condition. Town Manager Parker echoed 
Mayor Jackson’s comments and noted the support of all of Staff. 
 
Councilman Hines congratulated Kendall Futrell that signed with Cincinnati Bengals. Councilman Hines 
also noted that Creekside went thru neighborhoods to see the students. He asked that we look at ways 
to show appreciation to seniors graduating this year. Town Manager Parker noted that Staff discussed 
ways to show appreciation to three public high schools plus one private. Possibly Staff could put 
together a film for all the seniors. Councilman Hines said would appreciate something. Councilman 
Smith and Councilman Moye are supportive of the idea. Mayor Pro Tem Roberson is also supportive, 

126



 

Page 6 of 6 

and said not to forget the newspaper. She also said not to forget all the others that have helped 
including, teachers, cafeteria workers, etc. 
 
Councilman Moye noted a need for PPE. Town Manager Parker said it is difficult to get, Staff made 
some for use by employees. Mayor Pro Tem Roberson said thanks to all that have worked so hard to 
keep services going. Town Manager Parker we will continue to find PPE for staff and citizens. 
 
ADJOURN: Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilman Smith to adjourn 
the meeting. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. Meeting adjourned at 6:31 PM. 
 
 
 Adopted this the 11th day of May, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

127



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: May 11, 2020 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Ange Plaza, Lot 21 – Annexation. 

Action Requested: Re-Schedule Public Hearing for the Annexation to June 8, 2020. 

Attachment: Annexation Petition, Annexation Map, Legal Description, and Certification of Sufficiency. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 3/30/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 5/4/2020 ☒ TM: 5/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 5/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The property owner of a portion of Parcel 76141 (Ange Plaza, Lot 21) is applying for annexation into the 

Town limits. 

 

Ange Plaza, Lot 21: 

Location: Beacon Drive east of its intersection with Winterville Parkway. 

Size: 1.2397 Acres. 

Zoned: GB. 

 

Annexation Process: 

1st Council Meeting: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the Annexation (3/9/2020). 

2nd Council Meeting: Schedule a Public Hearing for the Annexation (5/11/2020). 

3rd Council Meeting: Hold Public Hearing on the Annexation (6/8/2020). 

**The Public Hearing was originally scheduled for May11, 2020, but has been requested to be rescheduled 
to June 8, 2020 due the COVID-19 situation. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Re-Schedule the Public Hearing. 

 

128



129



(60'PUBLIC R/W - 40' BC/BC)

BEACON DRIVE

BEACO
N 

DRI
VE

(6
0'
PUBLI

C 
R/

W
 - 
36
' B

C/
BC)

(R
/W
 V

A
R
IE

S
 - P

A
V
E

M
E

N
T
 V

A
R
IE

S
)

(W
IN

T
E

R
V
IL

L
E
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y
)

N
C
 H

W
Y
 1
1
 &
 9
0
3

(COMMON AREA)

ANGE PLAZA

MB 62, P 162

27

21

1.2397 ACRES
MB 84, P 110

ANGE PLAZA

22

MB 66, P 145

ANGE PLAZA

23

MB 83, P 159

ANGE PLAZA

14

TO BE RECORDED

ANGE PLAZA

20

 

1
1
4
9
-

N
O

R
T

H
 

M
I
L
L

1708-FIRETOWER

1
1
4
8
-
P
I
T
T
 
T
E

C
H

1130-VERNON WHITE

N
C
 
1
1
 
(

M
E

M
O

R
I

A
L
 

B
L

V
D
)

BEACON DRIVE

N
C
 
1
1

R
A
I
L

R
O

A
D
 
E

X
T

EXISTING CITY LIMITS

EXISTING CITY LIMITS

EXISTING CITY LIMITS

M
B
 4
6
, 
P

G
 1
5
0

O
L

D
 C
IT

Y
 L
IM

IT
S

N
E

W
 C
IT

Y
 L
IM

IT
S

N 75°45'2
0" W

OLD CITY LIMITS

OLD CITY LIMITS

WCO

NORTH CAROLINAWINTERVILLE TOWNSHIP           PITT COUNTY

LICENSE NUMBER AND SEAL

SURVEYED: APPROVED:

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

DATE:

SCALE:

CEP

CEP

CEP

MALPASS & ASSOCIATES

MAP NO. PLATS RECORDED BOOK PAGE

PROJECT NO.             , DRAWING NO.

PHONE:

 

ADDRESS:

 

OWNER:

(252) 756-1780

GREENVILLE, N.C. 27858

1645 E. ARLINGTON BLVD.,SUITE D

 

P-567

ANNEXATION MAP FOR

EXISTING CITY LIMIT =

OLD CITY LIMIT =

NEW CITY LIMIT =

  WINTERVILLE   TOWNSHIP, PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

DATE:                    ; ORDINANCE NUMBER:                    ; AREA:                     ACRES

THE TOWN OF WINTERVILLE, N.C.

MAP SHOWING AREA ANNEXED BY

SUPERVISION FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY BY ME

OR UNDER MY SUPERVISION, THAT THE RATIO

CARLTON E. PARKER               L-2980

   I, CARLTON E. PARKER, CERTIFY THAT

THIS MAP WAS DRAWN BY ME OR UNDER MY

OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED FROM

LATITUDES AND DEPARTURES 1S 1:10,000+;

THAT THE BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE

SHOWN AS BROKEN LINES PLOTTED FROM

INFORMATION FOUND IN BOOK      , 

PAGE      ; THAT THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 47-30 AS 

AMENDED. WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE,

VICINITY MAP
1"= 1000'

SITE

P567ANEXLOT21.DGN

02/03/20

ANGE PLAZA -   LOT 21

1664.71' (
TIE)

1"= 60'

GRAPHIC SCALE

60' 60'030' 120'

1" = 60'

(252) 714-8653

BATH, NC 27808

3 REST HAVEN ROAD EXTENSION

CEDAR LANDING PROPERTIES, LLC

1.2397
THIS      DAY OF            A.D., 2020.

 OF THE PITT COUNTY REGISTRY

A PORTION OF THE PROPERTY IN DEED BOOK 3748 PAGE 300

ANNEX LOT 21

D
R

A
W
IN

G

P
R

O
G

R
E
S
S

130



Legal Description For 

Ange Plaza Lot 21 Annexation 

 

Lying and being situate in Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina and being 

more particularly described as follows: 

 

Beginning at a point in the northern right of way of Beacon Drive said point being 

located S 75-45-20 E – 1664.71’ from the intersection of the northern right of way of 

Beacon Drive and the eastern right of way of NC Hwy 11and being the southeast corner 

of Ange Plaza Lot 22 as recorded in map book 84, page 110 of the Pitt County Registry, 

thence from said point of beginning N 31-04-43 E – 300.00’, thence S 58-55-17 E – 

180.00’, thence S 31-04-43 W – 300.00’ to the northern right of way of Beacon Drive, 

thence with the northern right of way of Beacon Drive N 58-55-17 W – 180.00’ to the 

point of beginning containing 1.2397 acres. 

131



132



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: May 11, 2020 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Evergreen Construction Company – Rezoning Request (Conditional Zoning District). 

Action Requested: Re-Schedule Public Hearing for Rezoning Request for June 8, 2020. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application, Rezoning Map, Legal Description, and Staff Report. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 4/24/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 5/4/2020 ☒ TM: 5/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 5/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

**This Public Hearing was originally scheduled for May 11, 2020, but due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 

the applicant has requested to reschedule to the June 8, 2020 Town Council meeting. 

 

Applicant: Evergreen Construction Company. 

 

Location: Hwy 11/Chapman Street north of its intersection with Main Street. 

 

Parcel Number: 20628 / 28376. 

 

Site Data: 3.27 Acres. 

 

Current Zoning District: R-6 / GB 

 

Proposed Zoning District: Multifamily – Residential (MR) Conditional 

 

Conditional Zoning Request: “To allow for subject parcels to be developed as 48 unit (55+) age restricted 
senior rental housing.” 

Budgetary Impact: TBD 

Recommendation: Re-Schedule the Public Hearing. 

 

133



134



135



136



137



138



139



______________________________________________________________________

Town of Winterville Planning Department
Zoning Staff Report  

______________________________________________________________________ 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT 

HEARING TYPE 

REQUEST 

CONDITIONS 

LOCATION 

PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 

TRACT SIZE 

 TOPOGRAPHY 

  VEGETATION 

SITE DATA 

Existing Use 

Evergreen Construction Company

Rezoning Request

R-6 and General Business (GB) to Multi-Family Residential (MR)

"To allow for subject parcels to be developed as 48 unit (55+) age 
restricted senior rental housing."

2576 Chapman Street 

20628 and 28376

Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request and notification was posted on site on February 10, 2020.  
14 properties were mailed notifications.  

3.27cres

Flat 

Partially cleared / Partially wooded

Vacant 

N 

E 

W 

Adjacent Zoning 

General Business

General Business, 
Agricultural Residential

R-6, Central Business

GB, R-6

Adjacent Land Uses 

Church

Single-family residential, vacant land, 
Hwy 11 S

Single-family dwellings, vacant land, 

and commercial

Single -family dwellings, commercial S

140



Page 2 of 4

S t a f f R e p o r t

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS 

District Summaries 
Zoning District 
Designation: 

Max. Density: 

Existing

R-6 and GB

N/A

R-6 meant to mainly accommodate

high-density residential.  GB
intended to accommodate business
that serve the traveling public and
require large amounts of land for
display and parking.

Requested 

Multi-Family Residential

N/A 

MR is intended to provide a quiet, 
relatively high-density 

neighborhood consisting of 
apartment complexes.

*These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations; see the Town of Winterville
Zoning Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district.

SPECIAL INFORMATION

Overlay District Ordinance

n/a

Environmental/Soils
n/a

Floodplain 

Streams 

Other: 

N/A 

N/A 

If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 SW requirements, provide 
Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit

Utilities (Availability):

Water - available TOW 
Sewer - available TOW 
Electric -   available   TOW

Typical Uses:

141



S t a f f  R e p o r t

Page 3 of 4

Landscaping & Buffer Requirements

Development must meet requirements per Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering Requirements.

Chapman St – Local Street.
HWY 11 S– NCDOT Road.

Transportation 
Street Classification: 

Site Access: 

Traffic Counts: 

Trip Generation: 

Sidewalks: 

Traffic Impact Study:

(TIS) 

Street Connectivity: 

Other: 

All access(s) must be designed and constructed to the Town 
of Winterville / NCDOT standards.

None available. 

N/A. 

Per Section 6.5 Special Requirements to the Table of Permitted Uses, 
SR 2, site plan approval must be obtained from P&Z and Council.  Site 
plan must include side walks under the same manner and criteria as 
defined in the Subdivision Ordinance.

TBD

N/A. 

N/A. 

IMPACT/POLICY ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 
The proposed Multi-Family Residential zoning district would allow land uses that are compatible 
with the general character of the area. 

Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
The Future Land Use Map designates this location as Mixed Use Center character area. 
The requested Multi-Family Residential zoning district is generally consistent with this 
character area as defined by the future land use designation.

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation

Land Use Policy 6 - Support Higher Density Housing Options in Strategic Locations: 
Encourage housing options in locations within walking distance off commercial and mixed use 
areas. 

142



S t a f f  R e p o r t

Page 4 of 4

Economic Development Policy 5 - Promote Retirement-focused living:
• Continue participation in the N.C. Department of Commerce's Certified Retirement

program.
• Remove barriers to and consider incentives for senior-friendly housing types in downtown

and other appropriate locations
• Recruit developers for individually owned patio homes and life care facilities to boraden

market offerings to the retirement age demographic.

Downtown Policy 1 - Live/work/play downtown: Allow people to live near downtown 
Winterville, by encouraging and allowing more dense residential development within walking 
distance to downtown.

Downtown Policy 3 - Encourage Investment and Redevelopment:  Encourage and allow 
high density residential in and around downtown.

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 

Community Outreach 
Applicant is encouraged to discuss this proposed rezoning and development with owners of
surrounding properties. 

Staff Analysis 
The 3.27 acre property is currently vacant.  North of the request is a church, zoned General 
Business (GB).  East of the request NC Hwy 11 S.  South of the request are single-family
dwellings and commercial businesses, zoned R-6 and GB.  West of the request are single-family
dwellings, vacant land, and commercial businesses, zoned Central Business, R-6, and General 
Business.   The request is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Zoning Ordinance, the 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan, and is generally compatible with the existing development and 
trend in the surrounding area.

Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of the requested Multi-Family Residential District with the 
condition of being specifically for an age restricted (55+) senior housing complex. 

143



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: May 11, 2020 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Resolution Designation of Applicants Agent. 

Action Requested: Approve the Resolution. 

Attachment: Designation of Applicants Agent Form. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 4/29/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 5/4/2020 ☒ TM: 5/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 5/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

As a result of The COVID-19 Pandemic, the Town is applying for FEMA assistance. As part of this process, 
FEMA pays 75% of the reimbursements and the State of North Carolina pays the remaining 25%. The State 
requires applicants to designate a primary and secondary agent. This will allow the Finance Director to be 
the primary agent. The primary agent, will prepare and submit the required documentation needed for 
reimbursements and represent the Town of Winterville with FEMA and the State of North Carolina. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Approve the Resolution. 

 

144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Old Business 

 

Meeting Date: May 11, 2020 

Presenter: Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Nobel Canal Bank Stabilization. 

Action Requested: No Action Requested. 

Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager Date: 5/5/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 5/5/2020 ☒ TM: 5/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 5/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Staff will provide update on current funding application and associated timeline for streambank stabilization 

of Nobel Canal. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: NA. 

 

152



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: May 11, 2020 

Presenter: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Approval of Contract Award for Highway 11 Force Main Bore. 

Action Requested: Award of Contract to Borco. 

Attachment: Certified Bid Tab and Letter of Recommendation. 

Prepared By: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director Date: 5/6/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 5/6/2020 ☒ TM: 5/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 5/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The existing force main from the Church Street Lift Station under Highway 11 is an 8” PVC force main. The 

Town has experienced multiple failures of this line in the past few years, and the State has instructed the 

Town to begin replacing it to avoid future SSO’s. In order to accommodate future growth staff intends to 

replace the existing 8” force main with a new 12” force main. This is the next step in upsizing the entire force 

main, and staff hopes to accomplish this in small sections over a several year period to avoid a large upfront 

cost. 

Bids were opened on Tuesday May 5, 2020. Four bids were received, with Borco being the lowest 

responsible bidder with a bid of $142,673.40 

Budgetary Impact: There was $170,000 budgeted for this project in the approved budget and bids came in 
well below the budgeted amount. 

Recommendation: Award of contract to Borco. 

 

153



154



155



156



157



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: May 11, 2020 

Presenter: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Approval of Change Order #2 for 2018 Sidewalks Improvements Project. 

Action Requested: Approve Change Order in the amount of $35,190.43. 

Attachment: Approve Change Order in the amount of $35,190.43. 

Prepared By: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director Date: 5/1/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 5/4/2020 ☒ TM: 5/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 5/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The Contractor for the 2018 Sidewalk Improvements Project completed the project in December 2019. The 

Contractor was delayed in completing the project due to the acquisition of an easement from the owner of 

the Dixie Queen Restaurant. Due to the delay being no fault of the Contractors the contract completion date 

shall be extended until after the project was completed. The change order also includes the cost of the 

additional work related to extra sidewalk on Ange Street and additional sidewalk repairs in Magnolia Ridge 

Subdivision. The Town Council had previously approved both of these items when the original contract was 

approved in the amount of $30,000. Other additional items included in the change order are additional 

handicap ramps (one at Dixie Queen and one at Mellon Downs), an additional culvert pipe at the ditch 

across from Mellon Downs, additional curb removal and replacement along Mill St., a curb head adjacent to 

Main & Mill, and some additional sidewalk repairs in the Copper Creek Subdivision. All of these items were 

necessary to complete the project and/or were requested by the Town. Staff recommends approving this 

change order in the amount of $35,190.43 for the additional work. 

Budgetary Impact: This change order will increase the total project cost to $180,267.93. Total project cost is 
still within the amount budgeted in the current fiscal year in the Powell Bill Fund. No additional funds are 
requested at this time. 

Recommendation: Approval of Change Order. 

 

158



159



160



161



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: May 11, 2020 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Approval of Next Round of Applicants for Town’s Urgent Repair Program. 

Action Requested: Approval of Applicant. 

Attachment: Applicant List. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 4/29/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 5/4/2020 ☒ TM: 5/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 5/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Staff will be submitting one (1) qualified applicant to Council on Monday night for approval to send to 
Rebuilding Together for vetting and inclusion in the Town’s Urgent Repair Program for Spring 2020. 

Budgetary Impact: There is currently $20,000 in the Urgent Repair Fund. The budget for one (1) home is 
$5,400. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Council approval of proposed applicant. 

 

162



Town of Winterville

Case # 1 238 Boyd Street 252-364-1001 $5,400

Case # 2 $5,400

Case # 3 $5,400

Case # 4 $5,400

Alternate

Urgent Repair Program FY 2019-2020

Addresses Phone     

163



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: May 11, 2020 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Set a Special Called Meeting to Conduct Town Manager’s Performance Review. 

Action Requested: Set a Meeting Date. 

Attachment: NA. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 5/6/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 5/4/2020 ☒ TM: 5/6/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 5/6/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

It is that time of year again to set a Special Called Meeting Date to conduct the Town Manager’s 
Performance Review. With that said, I offer the following dates as possible suggestions: 

Suggested Dates: 

Monday, June 1, 2020 at 5:30 pm (the FY 2020-2021 Budget Public Hearing is scheduled for 7:00 pm) 

Tuesday, June 2, 2020 at 6:00 pm 

Thursday, June 4, 2020 at 6:00 pm 

Tuesday, June 9, 2020 at 6:00 pm 

Unless the Council deems it necessary to change the process, I will author a Self-Evaluation and forward it 
to Council, in addition to sending the Performance Review instrument (which is a Council-adopted 
instrument). Each Board member will complete the Performance Review form and forward to Keen Lassiter 
and he will work will Council during the meeting to conduct said Performance Review. 

Please let me know should you have any questions. 

Thank you. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: NA. 

 

164


	0-20200511_Agendav3
	6-1a_Proclamation_Abstract_EMSv2
	6-1b_EMS_Week_Proclamation
	6-2a_Proclamation_Abstract_Public Worksv2
	6-2b_Public_Works_Proclamation
	6-3a_Proclamation_Abstract_Policev2
	6-3b_Police_Week_Proclamation
	6-4a_Proclamation_Abstract_Blount
	07-1a_Preentation_Abstract_Worthington_Roadv2
	07-1b_Worthington_Road_Study_Final_Draft_20200427
	09-1a_Consent_Abstract_Minutesv2
	09-1b_Regular_Meeting_Minutes_20200413_Draft
	09-1c_Budget_Progress_Minutes_2020_Draft
	09-2a_Consent_Abstract_Re-Sch_PH_Ange_Plaza_Lot_21_Annexv2
	09-2b_Ange Plaza - Lot 21 Annexation Petition
	09-2c_Ange Plaza - Lot 21 Annexation Map
	09-2d_Angel Plaza - Lot 21 Annex Legal Description
	09-2e_Ange_Plaza_Lot_21_Cert_of_Suff_exec
	09-3a_Consent_Abstract_Evergreen_Rezoningv2
	09-3b_Rezoning_Application_Map_Legal_Description
	09-3c_Evergreen_Brock_Property_Staff_Report
	09-4a_Consent_Abstract_FEMA_Designationv2
	09-4b_SAA_COVID19
	10-1a_Abstract_Nobel_Canal_Updatev2
	11-1a_Abstract_Hwy_11_Bore_Contractv2
	11-1b_Certified_Bid_Tab_and_Recommendation
	11-2a_Abstract_Sample_Sidewalk_Imps_CO#2v2
	11-2b_Proposed_Sidewalk_Imp_CO#2
	11-3a_New_Abstract_Urgent_Repairv2
	11-3b_Urgent_Repair_Applicant_for_Council_Approval
	11-4a_New_Abstract_Manager_Reviewv2



